

E 202

4

P32

1911



E

202  
.4  
.P32  
1911

CONSTITUTION AND  
BY-LAWS

OF THE

Pennsylvania Society

OF

Sons of the Revolution

---

Officers and Members

1911









Sons of the revolution. Pennsylvania society

Exegi monumentum ære perennius

The Constitution  
OF THE  
General Society of Sons  
of the Revolution

AND

By-Laws

OF THE

Pennsylvania State Society

---

Officers and Members

---

PHILADELPHIA

1911

E202  
.4  
P52  
1911.

# Pennsylvania Society

OF

## Sons of the Revolution

---

INSTITUTED APRIL 3D, 1888  
INCORPORATED SEPTEMBER 29TH, 1890

---

FOUNDERS:

Oliver Christian Bosbyshell  
George Horace Burgin  
Herman Burgin  
Richard McCall Cadwalader  
James Edward Carpenter  
Robert Porter Dechert  
William Churchill Houston, Jr.  
John Woolf Jordan  
Josiah Granville Leach  
Elon Dunbar Lockwood  
Charles Marshall  
Samuel Whitaker Pennypacker  
John Biddle Porter  
William Brooke-Rabale  
William Wayne



OFFICERS  
OF  
**Pennsylvania Society**  
OF  
**Sons of the Revolution**

---

1911-1912

---

*President.*

RICHARD McCALL CADWALADER.

*Vice-Presidents.*

HON. SAMUEL W. PENNYPACKER, LL.D.

HON. JAMES A. BEAVER, LL.D.

MAJOR-GENERAL JOHN RUTTER BROOKE, U. S. A.

HON. JOHN BAYARD McPHERSON, LL.D.

CHARLES HENRY JONES.

*Secretary.*

GEORGE CUTHBERT GILLESPIE,  
203 Walnut Place, Philadelphia.

*Treasurer.*

HARROLD E. GILLINGHAM,  
430 Walnut Street, Philadelphia.

*Registrar.*

JOHN WOOLF JORDAN, LL.D.

*Historian.*

COL. JOSIAH GRANVILLE LEACH.

*Chaplain.*

REV. GEORGE WOOLSEY HODGE, M.A.

*Managers.*

REV. HORACE EDWIN HAYDEN.  
THOMAS HEWSON BRADFORD, M.D.  
STANLEY GRISWOLD FLAGG, JR.  
EDWARD STALKER SAYRES.  
HON. NORRIS STANLEY BARRATT, LL.D.  
HORACE MAGEE.  
JAMES McCORMICK LAMBERTON.  
HON. JOHN M. SCOTT.  
EDWARD T. STOTESBURY.

*Delegates to the General Society.*

S. DAVIS PAGE.  
COL. CHARLES HEATH HEYL, U. S. A.  
CAPTAIN WILLIAM BAIRD, U. S. A.  
COL. JOSIAH GRANVILLE LEACH.  
JOHN WOOLF JORDAN, LL.D.  
WILLIAM MACPHERSON HORNOR.  
J. MADISON TAYLOR, M.D.  
ADAM A. STULL.  
HON. JOHN MORIN SCOTT.  
THOMAS WILLING BALCH.  
WILLIAM S. LLOYD.  
PAUL ROSS WEITZELL.  
CLARENCE PAYNE FRANKLIN, M.D.

*Alternate Delegates to the General Society.*

ETHAN ALLEN WEAVER.  
GEORGE KNOWLES CROZER.  
COL. HENRY WARREN LITTLEFIELD.  
LIEUT. HENRY CROSKEY MUSTIN, U. S. N.  
HENRY GRAHAM ASHMEAD.  
CHARLES LOUIS BORIE, JR.  
HARROLD E. GILLINGHAM.  
FRANK BATTLES.  
ALEXANDER WILSON RUSSELL.  
MEREDITH HANNA.  
ABEL LUKENS STOUT.  
DAVID MILNE.  
OLIVER RANDOLPH PARRY.  
GEORGE LINDEN CUTLER.

## Standing Committees

---

### *Ex-officio Members of all Committees.*

RICHARD McCALL CADWALADER, President of the Society.  
CHARLES HENRY JONES, Chairman Board of Managers.

### *On Applications for Membership.*

COL. JOSIAH GRANVILLE LEACH, Chairman.  
John Woolf Jordan, LL.D., Edward Stalker Sayres.

### *On Equestrian Statue to Major-General Anthony Wayne.*

EDWARD TOWNSEND STOTESBURY, Chairman.  
Charles Louis Borie, Jr., Hon. James Tyndale Mitchell,  
Thomas De Witt Cuyler, LL.D.,  
Samuel Frederic Houston, Randall Morgan,  
Charles Henry Jones, Samuel Davis Page,  
Col. Josiah Granville Leach, Samuel Rea, D.Sc.,  
Horace Magee, Edward Stalker Sayres, Sec'y  
Caleb Jones Milne, of Committee.

### *On Landmarks of the Revolution, Monuments and Memorials.*

HON. NORRIS STANLEY BARRATT, LL.D., Chairman.  
Frank Battles, George deBenneville Keim,  
John William Brock, Hon. Samuel Whitaker Pen-  
Charles Carver, nypacker, LL.D.,  
Charles Edmund Dana, Guillermo Colesberry Purves,  
Luther Curran Dart, Alexander Wilson Wister,  
Lincoln Godfrey, Howard Wood.

### *On Annual Church Service.*

HORACE MAGEE, Chairman.  
The Rev. George Woolsey Hodge, M.A., Chaplain.

### *On Celebration of Evacuation Day.*

EDWARD STALKER SAYRES, Chairman.  
Frank M. Riter, Harrold E. Gillingham,  
John M. Ash, Jr.

*Color Guard.*

(Organized October 7, 1897.)

ALEXANDER WILSON RUSSELL, JR., Captain.

John Morgan Ash, Jr.,	Meredith Hanna,
Matthew Baird, Jr.,	Albert Hill,
Paul Henry Barnes, Jr.,	Henry Douglas Hughes,
David Knickerbacker Boyd,	William Leverett,
Lawrence Visscher Boyd,	Jacob Giles Morris,
James De Waele Cookman,	Jonathan Cilley Neff,
Samuel Babcock Crowell,	Oliver Randolph Parry,
Henry Lindley Crowther,	William Campbell Posey,
George Alexander Davison,	M.D.,
Stanley Griswold Flagg, Jr.,	Ralph Currier Putnam,
Clarence Payne Franklin,	Frank Miller Riter,
M.D.,	Frank Earle Schermerhorn,
Clinton Franklin, D.D.S.,	Learoyd Silvester,
William Copeland Furber,	Joseph Allison Steinmetz,
Harrold Edgar Gillingham,	Ogden Dungan Wilkinson
William Partridge Gilpin,	

# The Constitution

*Done at the City of Philadelphia on the 12th day of February, 1890, and of the Independence of the United States the one hundred and fourteenth.*

---

*Adopted in the City of New York March 8th, 1890.*

## I.

It being evident, from a steady decline of a proper celebration of the National holidays of the United States of America, that popular concern in the events and men of the War of the Revolution is gradually declining, and that such lack of interest is attributable, not so much to the lapse of time and the rapidly increasing flood of immigration from foreign countries, as to the neglect, on the part of descendants of Revolutionary heroes, to perform their duty in keeping before the public mind the memory of the services of their ancestors and of the times in which they lived; therefore, the Society of the Sons of the Revolution has been instituted to perpetuate the memory of the men who, in the military, naval and civil service of the Colonies and of the Continental Congress by their acts or counsel, achieved the Independence of the country, and to further the proper celebration of the anniversaries of the birthday of Washington, and of prominent events connected with the War of the Revolution; to collect and secure for preservation the rolls, records, and other documents relating to that period; to inspire the members of the Society with the patriotic spirit of their forefathers; and to promote the feeling of friendship among them.

Object of the Society.

## II.

The General Society shall be divided into State Societies, which shall meet annually on the day appointed therefor in their respective by-laws, and oftener if found expedient; and at such

The General Society.

annual meeting the reasons for the institution of the Society shall be considered, and the best measures for carrying them into effect adopted.

### III.

Officers of State Societies.

The State Societies, at each annual meeting, shall choose, by a majority of the votes present, a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, a Registrar, a Treasurer, a Chaplain, and such other officers as may by them respectively be deemed necessary, together with a board of managers consisting of these officers and of nine other members, all of whom shall retain their respective positions until their successors are duly chosen.

### IV.

Interchange of information between State Societies.

Each State Society shall cause to be transmitted annually, or oftener, to the other State Societies, a circular letter calling attention to whatever may be thought worthy of observation respecting the welfare of the Society or of the general Union of the States, and giving information of the officers chosen for the year; and copies of these letters shall also be transmitted to the General Secretary, to be preserved among the records of the General Society.

### V.

Powers of the State Societies.

The State Societies shall regulate all matters respecting their own affairs, consistent with the general good of the Society; judge of the qualification of their members, or of those proposed for membership, subject, however, to the provisions of this Constitution; and expel any member who, by conduct unbecoming a gentleman or a man of honor, or by an opposition to the interests of the community in general or of the Society in particular, may render himself unworthy to continue in membership.

### VI.

Permanent Fund.

In order to form funds that may be respectable, each member shall contribute, upon his admission to the Society and annually thereafter, such sums as the by-laws of the respective State Societies may require; but any of such State Societies may pro-

vide for the endowment of memberships by the payment of proper sums in capitalization, which sums shall be properly invested as a permanent fund, the income only of which shall be expended.

## VII.

The regular meeting of the General Society shall be held every three years, and special meetings may be held upon the order of the General President or upon the request of two of the State Societies, and such meetings shall consist of two Delegates from each State Society and one additional Delegate for every one hundred (100) members or major fraction thereof; and on all questions arising at meetings of the General Society each Delegate there present shall be entitled to one vote, and no votes shall be taken by States, and the necessary expenses of such meeting shall be borne by the State Societies.

Meeting of the General Society and Representation therein.

## VIII.

At the regular meeting, a General President, General Vice-President, General Second Vice-President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Registrar, Historian, and Chaplain shall be chosen by a majority of the votes present, to serve until the next regular general meeting, or until their successors are duly chosen.

Officers of the General Society.

## IX.

At each general meeting the circular letters which have been transmitted by the several State Societies shall be considered, and all measures taken which shall conduce to the general welfare of the Society.

Recommendations of the State Societies to be considered by the General Society.

## X.

The General Society shall have power at any meeting to admit State Societies thereto, and to entertain and determine all questions affecting the qualifications for membership in or the welfare of any State Society as may, by proper memorial, be presented by such State Society for consideration.

Admission of State Societies

## XI.

Qualifications  
for Membership.

Any male person above the age of twenty-one years, of good character, and a descendant of one who, as a military, naval, or marine officer, soldier, sailor, or marine, in actual service, under the authority of any of the thirteen Colonies or States or of the Continental Congress, and remaining always loyal to such authority, or a descendant of one who signed the Declaration of Independence, or of one who, as a member of the Continental Congress or of the Congress of any of the Colonies or States, or as an official appointed by or under the authority of any such legislative bodies, actually assisted in the establishment of American Independence by services rendered during the War of the Revolution, becoming thereby liable to conviction of treason against the Government of Great Britain, but remaining always loyal to the authority of the Colonies or States, shall be eligible to membership in the Society.

## XII.

List of members  
to be furnished  
the secretary of  
the General  
Society.

The Secretary of each State Society shall transmit to the General Secretary a list of the members thereof, together with the names and official designations of those from whom such members derive claim to membership, and thereafter upon the admission of members in each State Society, the Secretary thereof shall transmit to the General Secretary information respecting such members similar to that herein required.

## XIII.

Insignia of the  
Society.

The Society shall have an insignia, which shall be a badge suspended from a ribbon by a ring of gold; the badge to be elliptical in form, with escaloped edges, one and one-quarter inches in length, and one and one-eighth inches in width; the whole surmounted by a gold eagle, with wings displayed, inverted; on the obverse side a medallion of gold in the center, elliptical in form, bearing on its face the figure of a soldier in Continental uniform, with musket slung; beneath, the figures 1775; the medallion surrounded by thirteen raised gold stars of five points each upon a border of dark blue enamel. On the reverse side, in the center, a medallion corresponding in form to that on the obverse, and also in gold, bearing on its face the Houdon portrait of Washing-



ton in bas-relief, encircled by the legend, "Sons of the Revolution"; beneath, the figures 1883; and upon the reverse of the eagle the number of the badge to be engraved; the medallion to be surrounded by a plain gold border, conforming in dimensions to the obverse; the ribbon shall be dark blue, ribbed and watered, edged with buff, one and one-quarter inches wide, and one and one-half inches in displayed length.

#### XIV.

The insignia of the Society shall be worn by the members on all occasions when they assemble as such for any stated purpose or celebration, and may be worn on any occasion of ceremony; it shall be carried conspicuously on the left breast, but members who are or have been officers of the Society may wear the insignia suspended from the ribbon around the neck.

Manner of wearing the insignia.

#### XV.

The custodian of the insignia shall be the General Secretary, who shall issue them to members of the Society under such proper rules as may be formulated by the General Society, and he shall keep a register of such issues wherein each insignia issued may be identified by the number thereof.

Manner of Issuing and identifying the insignia.

#### XVI.

The seal of the Society shall be one and seven-eighth inches in diameter, and shall consist of the figure of a Minute-man in Continental uniform, standing on a ladder leading to a belfry; in his left hand he holds a musket and an olive branch, whilst his right grasps a bell-rope; above, the cracked Liberty Bell; issuing therefrom a ribbon bearing the motto of the Society, *Exegi monumentum ære perennius*; across the top of the ladder, on a ribbon, the figures 1776; and on the left of the Minute-man, and also on a ribbon, the figures 1883, the year of the formation of the Society; the whole encircled by a band three-eighths of one inch wide; thereon at the top thirteen stars of five points each; at the bottom the name of the General Society, or of the State Society to which the seal belongs.

Seal of the Society.



# By-Laws

(Inclusive of Amendments adopted April 3d, 1907.)

---

## SECTION I.

This Society shall be known by the name, style and title of the PENNSYLVANIA SOCIETY OF SONS OF THE REVOLUTION.

Name of the  
Society

## SECTION II.

Any male person above the age of twenty-one years, of good character, and a lineal descendant of one who, as a military, naval, or marine officer, soldier, sailor, or marine, in actual service, under the authority of any of the thirteen Colonies or States or of the Continental Congress, and remaining always loyal to such authority, or a lineal descendant of one who signed the Declaration of Independence, or of one who, as a member of the Continental Congress, or of the Congress of any of the Colonies or States, or as an official appointed by or under the authority of any such legislative bodies, actually assisted in the establishment of American Independence by services rendered during the War of the Revolution, becoming thereby liable to conviction of treason against the Government of Great Britain, but remaining always loyal to the authority of the Colonies or States, shall be eligible to membership in the Society.

Qualifications  
for membership

*Provided*, That when the claim of eligibility is based on the service of an ancestor in the "minute men" or "militia," it must be satisfactorily shown that such ancestor was actually called into the service of the State or United States, and performed garrison or field duty; and

*Provided further*, That when the claim of eligibility is based on the service of an ancestor as a "sailor" or "marine," it must

in like manner be shown that such service was other than shore duty and regularly performed in the Continental Navy, or the navy of one of the original thirteen States, or on an armed vessel, other than a merchant ship, which sailed under letters of marque and reprisal, and that such ancestor of the applicant was duly enrolled in the ship's company, either as an officer, seaman or otherwise than as a passenger ; and

*Provided further,* That when the claim of eligibility is based on the service of an ancestor as an "official," such service must have been performed in the civil service of the United States, or of one of the thirteen original States, and must have been sufficiently important in character to have rendered the official liable to arrest and imprisonment, the same as a combatant, if captured by the enemy, as well as liable to conviction of treason against the Government of Great Britain.

Service in the ordinary duties of a civil office, the performance of which did not particularly and effectively aid the American Cause, shall not constitute eligibility.

In the construction of this article, the Volunteer Aides-de-Camp of General Officers in Continental Service, who were duly announced as such and who actually served in the field during a campaign, shall be comprehended as having performed qualifying service.

The civil officials and military forces of the State of Vermont, during the War of the Revolution, shall also be comprehended in the same manner as if they had belonged to one of the thirteen original States.

No service of an ancestor shall be deemed as qualifying service for membership in the "SONS OF THE REVOLUTION" where such ancestor, after assisting in the cause of American Independence, shall have subsequently either adhered to the enemy, or failed to maintain an honorable record throughout the War of the Revolution.

No person shall be admitted unless he be eligible under one of the provisions of this article, nor unless he be of good moral character and be judged worthy of becoming a member.

### SECTION III.

Applicants for admission to membership in this Society must be proposed by two members in good standing, to whom the applicant is personally well known. Nomination and election to membership.

The proposers to give the full name, occupation and residence of the candidate, and other recommendations as to his worthiness for membership in the Society. This information shall be sent to the Secretary, who shall submit the same to the Board of Managers, and if approved by them, he shall furnish application blanks which must be filled out in accordance with the instructions accompanying the same, and be forwarded to the Secretary, who shall submit them to the Committee on Applications, and upon their approval the Board of Managers shall have the power to elect the applicant to membership.

Applications shall contain, or be accompanied by, proof of eligibility, and such applications and proofs shall be submitted to the Board of Managers, who shall have full power to determine the qualifications of the applicants who, upon favorable action by said Board, and upon payment of the initiation fee, shall thereupon become members of the Society.

### SECTION IV.

The initiation fee shall be ten (10) dollars, payable within thirty days after date of election; the annual dues three (3) dollars, payable in advance. The payment at one time of fifty (50) dollars shall constitute a life membership. The payment at one time of one hundred (100) dollars shall constitute a perpetual or endowed membership, and upon the death of the member so paying, the membership shall be held by his eldest son, or such other lineal descendant from the ancestor whom he claims as he may nominate; in failure of such nomination having been made, the Board of Managers may decide which one of such lineal descendants shall hold the membership; *Provided, always,* That the Society reserves to itself the privilege of rejecting, by its Board of Managers, any nomination that may not be acceptable to it. All applicants for life or endowed memberships shall be exempt from the payment of the initiation fee, and annual dues from the Fees for membership.

date of their admission; after admission, any member availing himself of a life or endowed membership shall be exempt from future annual dues only.

#### SECTION V.

Permanent fund.

All initiation, life, and endowed membership fees, as well as donations and legacies, unless otherwise specified by the donor, which shall hereafter be paid to the Society, shall remain forever to the use of the Society as a permanent fund.

#### SECTION VI.

Annual meeting and election of officers.

The annual meeting of the Society shall be held in the city of Philadelphia, on the third day of April, at which a general election of officers, managers and delegates, by ballot, shall take place, except when such date shall fall on Sunday, in which event the meeting shall be held on the following day. In such election a majority of the ballots given for any officer shall constitute a choice; but if, on the first ballot, no person shall receive such majority, then a further balloting shall take place, in which a plurality of votes given for any officer shall determine the choice.

#### SECTION VII.

Order of business.

The following shall be the order of business at the annual meetings of the Society:—

1. Prayer by the chaplain.
2. Reading of the minutes of the last meeting.
3. Reports of officers and committees.
4. Unfinished business.
5. New business.
6. Election of officers—an appointment by the President of a judge and two tellers to count the votes and declare the result.
7. Reading of the rough minutes of the meeting.

### SECTION VIII.

At all meetings of the Society twenty-five (25) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Quorum.

### SECTION IX.

Ayes and nays shall be called at any meeting of the Society upon the demand of five members.

Ayes and nays.

### SECTION X.

The officers of the Society shall consist of a President, five Vice-Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer, Registrar, Historian, Chaplain, and nine Managers, who shall be elected as herein provided for.

Officers.

### SECTION XI.

The President, or, in his absence, one of the Vice-Presidents, or, in their absence, a chairman *pro tempore*, shall preside at all meetings of the Society, and shall have a casting vote. He shall preserve order, and shall decide all questions of order, subject to an appeal to the Society.

Presiding officer.

### SECTION XII.

The Secretary shall conduct the general correspondence of the Society. He shall notify all members of their election, and of such other matters as he may be directed by the Society. He shall have charge of the seal, certificate of incorporation and by-laws, and records of the Society, other than those deposited with the Registrar. He, together with the presiding officer, shall certify all acts of the Society. He shall, under the direction of the President or Vice-President, give due notice of the time and place of all meetings of the Society, and attend the same. He shall keep fair and accurate records of all the proceedings and orders of the Society; and shall give notice to the several officers of all votes, orders, resolves, and proceedings of the Society affecting them, or appertaining to their respective duties. He shall be Secretary of the Board of Managers, and shall keep the record of their meetings in the regular minute-book of the Society.

Secretary.

### SECTION XIII.

Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall collect and keep the funds and securities of the Society; and so often as those funds shall amount to one hundred (100) dollars, they shall be deposited in some bank or trust company in the city of Philadelphia, to the credit of the "Pennsylvania Society of Sons of the Revolution," and shall be drawn thence on the check of the Treasurer for the purposes of the Society only. Out of these funds he shall pay such sums as may be ordered by the Society or by the Board of Managers. He shall keep a true account of his receipts and payments, and, at each annual meeting render the same to the Society. A committee shall be appointed by the President to audit his accounts. He shall give such security as shall be required by the Board of Managers.

### SECTION XIV.

Registrar.

The Registrar shall keep a roll of members, and in his hands shall be lodged all the proofs of membership qualification, and all the historical and other papers of which the Society may become possessed; and he, under the direction of the Board of Managers, shall make copies of such similar documents as the owners thereof are or may not be willing to leave permanently in the keeping of the Society. He, if practicable, shall be a member of the Historical Society of Pennsylvania.

### SECTION XV.

Historian.

The Historian shall keep a detailed record, to be deposited with the Registrar, of all the historical and commemorative celebrations of the Society; and he shall edit and prepare for publication such historical addresses, essays, papers, and other documents of an historical character, other than a register of members, as the Secretary may be required to publish; and at every annual meeting, if there shall be a necrological list for the year then closing, he shall submit the same, with carefully-prepared biographies of the deceased members.



## SECTION XVI.

The Chaplain shall be a regularly ordained minister of a Christian denomination, and it shall be his duty to open all meetings of the Society with customary chaplaincy services, and perform such other duties as ordinarily appertain to such office. Chaplain.

## SECTION XVII.

The Board of Managers shall consist of twenty, namely: The President, five Vice-Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer, Registrar, Historian, and Chaplain, *ex-officio*, and nine other members. Board of  
Managers. Three of the Vice-Presidents, and at least three of the nine managers, shall be non-residents of the city of Philadelphia. All of the officers and managers shall be elected at the annual meeting. Should a vacancy occur among the officers or managers, the Board of Managers may fill the same until the next annual election.

They shall judge of the qualifications of the candidates for admission to the Society, and shall have power to elect the same to membership. They shall have charge of all special meetings of the Society, and shall, through the Secretary, call special meetings at any time, upon the written request of ten members of the Society, and at such other times as they see fit. They shall recommend plans for promoting the objects of the Society, shall digest and prepare business, and shall authorize the disbursement and expenditure of unappropriated money in the treasury for the purposes of the Society. They shall generally superintend the interests of the Society, and execute all such duties as may be committed to them by the Society. At each annual meeting of the Society they shall make a general report.

At all meetings of the Board of Managers five members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

## SECTION XVIII.

The chairman of the Board of Managers shall appoint annually three members thereof as a Committee on Applications, Committee on  
applications. whose duty it shall be to pass upon the applications of candidates for admission to the Society, and report to the Board of Managers.

## SECTION XIX.

Expulsion or  
suspension of  
members.

The Board of Managers shall have power to suspend any enrolled member of this Society who may, in the judgment of the Board, render himself unworthy to continue a member: *Provided*, That he shall have received at least thirty days' notice of the complaint preferred against him, and of the time and place for hearing the same, and have been thereby afforded an opportunity to be heard; and *Provided further*, That such suspension shall become absolute, and such member shall cease to be a member unless he shall within thirty (30) days after notice of such suspension appeal to the Society, when a special meeting shall be called to pass upon and decide the case.

The Board of Managers shall also have the power to drop from the roll the name of any enrolled member of the Society who shall be at least two years in arrears in the payment of dues, and who, on notice to pay the same, shall fail and neglect to do so within thirty days thereafter, and, upon being thus dropped, his membership shall cease and terminate, but he may be restored to membership at any time by the Board of Managers on his application therefor, and upon his payment of all such arrears and of the annual dues from the date when he was dropped to the date of his restoration.

## SECTION XX.

Commemorative  
services.

An annual church service shall be held on the Sunday nearest to the 19th day of December, commemorative of the commencement of the American Army's encampment at Valley Forge. Other commemorative services may be held at the discretion of the Board of Managers.

## SECTION XXI.

Alteration of  
By-Laws.

No alteration of the By-Laws of the Society shall be made unless such alteration shall have been proposed at a previous meeting, and shall be adopted by two-thirds of the members present at a subsequent meeting of the Society, at least two weeks' notice thereof having been given to each member.

CHARTER  
OF THE  
**Pennsylvania Society**  
OF  
**Sons of the Revolution**

---

*To the Honorable the Judges of the Court of Common Pleas  
No. 4, of the County of Philadelphia:—*

In compliance with the requirements of an Act of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, entitled, "An Act to provide for the Incorporation and Regulation of certain Corporations," approved the twenty-ninth day of April, A.D. 1874, and the supplements thereto, the undersigned, all of whom are citizens of Pennsylvania, having associated themselves together for the purpose of maintaining a Society to keep alive among themselves and their descendants the patriotic spirit of the men who, in military, naval, and civil service, by their acts and counsel, achieved American Independence; to collect and secure for preservation the manuscript rolls, records, and other documents relating to the War of the Revolution, and to promote social intercourse and good feeling among its members now and hereafter, and desiring that they may be incorporated according to law, do hereby certify

*First.*—The name of the proposed corporation is the "Pennsylvania Society of Sons of the Revolution."

*Second.*—Said corporation is formed for the purpose of maintaining a society for patriotic purposes in connection with the War of American Independence, the collection and preservation of manuscripts, records, and documents relating to the War of the Revolution, and for social enjoyment and intercourse.

*Third.*—The business of said corporation is to be transacted in the County of Philadelphia, State of Pennsylvania.

*Fourth.*—Said corporation is to exist perpetually.

*Fifth.*—The names and residences of the subscribers are as follows: WILLIAM WAYNE, Paoli, Chester County, Pennsylvania; RICHARD M. CADWALADER, 1614 Locust Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; GEORGE H. BURGIN, 76 Cheltenham Avenue, Germantown, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; ROBERT P. DECHERT, 406 South Broad Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; JOHN W. JORDAN, 806 North Forty-first Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; J. EDWARD CARPENTER, 228 South Twenty-first Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; J. GRANVILLE LEACH, 2118 Spruce Street, Philadelphia.

*Sixth.*—The number of Directors of said corporation is fixed at nine (9), and the names and residences of those chosen for the first year are: J. EDWARD CARPENTER, 228 South Twenty-first Street, Philadelphia, Penna.; OLIVER C. BOSBYSELL, 4046 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, Penna.; E. DUNBAR LOCKWOOD, Aldine Hotel, Philadelphia, Penna.; SAMUEL W. PENNYPACKER, 1540 North Fifteenth Street, Philadelphia, Penna.; HERMAN BURGIN, 76 Cheltenham Avenue, Germantown, Philadelphia, Penna.; THOMAS MCKEAN, 1925 Walnut Street, Philadelphia, Penna.; CHARLES MARSHALL, Germantown, Philadelphia, Penna.; WILLIAM HENRY EGLE, Harrisburg, Penna.; CLIFFORD STANLEY SIMS, Mount Holly, New Jersey. There is also a President of the said corporation, a Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, Registrar, and Chaplain and Historian.

The officers chosen for the first year are: President, WILLIAM WAYNE, Paoli, Chester County, Pennsylvania; Vice-President, RICHARD M. CADWALADER, 1614 Locust Street, Philadelphia; Secretary, GEORGE H. BURGIN, M.D., Cheltenham Avenue, Germantown, Philadelphia; Treasurer, ROBERT P. DECHERT, 406 South Broad Street, Philadelphia; Registrar, JOHN W. JORDAN, 806 North Forty-first Street, Philadelphia; Chaplain, REV. GEORGE

WOOLSEY HODGE, 334 South Thirteenth Street, Philadelphia; Historian, J. GRANVILLE LEACH, 2118 Spruce Street, Philadelphia.

*Seventh.*—There is no capital stock.

WITNESS our hands and seals this fourth day of July,  
A.D. 1890.

WILLIAM WAYNE,	ROBERT P. DECHERT,
RICHARD M. CADWALADER,	JOHN W. JORDAN,
GEORGE H. BURGIN,	J. E. CARPENTER,
J. GRANVILLE LEACH.	

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, }  
COUNTY OF PHILADELPHIA, } ss.

Before me, the subscriber, Recorder of Deeds of said County, personally appeared RICHARD M. CADWALADER, GEORGE H. BURGIN and J. EDWARD CARPENTER, three of the subscribers to the above and foregoing certificate of Incorporation of the "Pennsylvania Society of Sons of the Revolution," and in due form of law acknowledged the same to be their act and deed.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this twelfth day of  
July, 1890.

JOS. K. FLETCHER,  
*Deputy Recorder.*

## DECREE

---

In the Court of Common Pleas No. 4, of Philadelphia County.

In the matter of the Incorporation of the "Pennsylvania Society of Sons of the Revolution."

And now to wit, this 29th day of September, A.D. 1890, the above certificate of Incorporation having been on file in the office of the Prothonotary of said Court since the twelfth day of July, A.D. 1890, and due proof of publication of notice of intended application having been presented to me, I do hereby certify that I have perused and examined said Instrument and find the same to be in proper form and within the purposes named in the first class of corporations specified in Section 2 of the Act of April 29th, 1874, and that purposes are lawful and not injurious to the community. It is therefore ordered and decreed that the said charter be approved and it is hereby approved, and upon the recording of the said Charter and its endorsements and this order in the office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for said County, which is now hereby ordered, the subscribers thereto and their associates shall thenceforth be a corporation for the purpose and upon the terms under the name therein stated.

M. ARNOLD,  
*Judge of Court of Common Pleas No. 4,  
First Judicial District of Penna.*

Recorded in the office for the recording of Deeds, &c., in and for the City and County of Philadelphia, in Charter Book No. 16, page 413, &c.

WITNESS my hand and seal of office, this tenth day of  
November, A.D. 1890.

GEO. G. PIERIE,  
*Recorder of Deeds.*

**LIST OF MEMBERS**  
 OF  
**Pennsylvania Society**  
 OF  
**Sons of the Revolution**

---

- |  |   |
|--|---|
| <p>                     Abercrombie, Frank Engle Pat-<br/>                     terson,<br/>                     Acker, Abraham Lincoln,<br/>                     Acker, Durbin Stephen,<br/>                     Acker, Finley,<br/>                     Acker, James Durbin,<br/>                     Acker, John Henry Radey,<br/>                     Adams, Jedidiah Howe, M.D.,<br/>                     Adams, Joseph Weaver,<br/>                     Adams, Richard Calmet. (L),<br/>                     Agard, Charles Walter,<br/>                     Agard, Frederick Tyler,<br/>                     von Albadé, Francis Fete Ander-<br/>                     son,<br/>                     Allen, Edward Halket,<br/>                     Allen, Richard Jacobs, Jr.,<br/>                     Armstrong, Harold Rodney<br/>                     Arnold, Herbert Alonzo, MD.,<br/>                     Arnold, William Dorsey Irvin,<br/>                     Ash, Edward Twells,<br/>                     Ash, Gordon Monges,<br/>                     Ash, John Morgan, Jr.,<br/>                     Ashby, Bernard,<br/>                     Ashhurst, William Henry,<br/>                     Ashley, Herbert Henry,<br/>                     Ashmead, Duffield,<br/>                     Ashton, Taber,<br/>                     Ashton, William Easterly, M.D.,<br/>                     LL.D.,<br/>                     Atherton, Dolph Bennett,<br/>                     Atherton, Thomas Henry,<br/>                     Atlee, Benjamin Champneys,<br/>                     Atlee, John<br/>                     Ayres, Henry,<br/>                     Ayres, Louis Harlow,<br/>                     Bailey, Charles Weaver,                 </p> | <p>                     Bailey, George Washington,<br/>                     M.D.,<br/>                     Bailey, Joseph Trowbridge,<br/>                     Baird, Edgar Wright,<br/>                     Baird, Matthew, Jr.,<br/>                     Baird, Oliver Hopkinson,<br/>                     Baird, Thomas Evans, Jr. (L),<br/>                     Baird, William (Captain U. S.<br/>                     A., retired),<br/>                     Baird, William James,<br/>                     Baker, George Fales, M.D. (L),<br/>                     Baker, Joseph Boyd,<br/>                     Baker, Joseph Boyd, 3d,<br/>                     Baker, John Townsend,<br/>                     Baker, Joseph Weaver,<br/>                     Baker, William Boyd,<br/>                     Balch, Edwin Swift. (L),<br/>                     Balch, Thomas Willing. (L),<br/>                     Baldwin, Frederic Augustus<br/>                     Rauch,<br/>                     Ball, Thomas Hand,<br/>                     Ballard, Warren Edgar,<br/>                     Banks, George Washington,<br/>                     Bannard, Charles Heath,<br/>                     Barber, Edwin Atlee, PhD.,<br/>                     Barlow, Thomas Warren,<br/>                     Barnes, Harry Gillum,<br/>                     Barnes, John Hampton,<br/>                     Barnes, Paul Henry, Jr.,<br/>                     Barnes, William Henry,<br/>                     Barnsley, John Herman,<br/>                     Barratt, Hon. Norris Stanley,<br/>                     LL.D. (E),<br/>                     Barton, John Walter,<br/>                     Bartow, Henry Blackwell,<br/>                     Bartow, Josiah Blackwell,                 </p> |
|--|---|

Basehore, Samuel Elmer,  
 Bashore, Harvey Brown, M.D.,  
 Battles, Frank. (L),  
 Beale, Horace Alexander, Jr.,  
 Beale, Joseph. (L),  
 Beatty, Robert Lorton Combs,  
 Beaumont, André Alden,  
 Beaumont, Eugene Beauharnais  
 (Lt. Col. U. S. A., retired),  
 Beaver, Hon. James Addams  
 LL.D.,  
 Beaver, Thomas Beaver,  
 Beck, John Bush,  
 Behm, John William,  
 Beisel, Reuben Alvan. (L),  
 Beitler, Hon. Abraham Merkle, Jr.,  
 Beitler, Harold Borneman,  
 Beitler, Lewis Eugene. (L),  
 Belknap, Henry Heston,  
 Bell, Davis Bates,  
 Bell, Edmund Hayes,  
 Bell, William Hemphill, M.D.,  
 Bell, William Thompson,  
 Bement, Clarence Swift,  
 Bennett, Frederick Charles,  
 Bennett, Stephen Beers,  
 de Benneville, James Seguin,  
 Benson, Edwin North, Jr.,  
 Bent, Stedman,  
 Biddle, Alexander Williams,  
 M.D.,  
 Biddle, Caldwell Keppele,  
 Biddle, Louis Alexander,  
 Biddle, Thomas, M.D. (L),  
 Biddle, William Lyman,  
 Bingaman, John Ralston,  
 Birkey, Henry Wikoff, M.D.,  
 Bishop, George Conarroe. (L),  
 Bishop, Rev. Gilbert Livingston,  
 Blackwell, Rev. James Magee,  
 Blakslee, Charles Ashley,  
 Blakslee, James Irwin, Jr.,  
 Blight, Elihu Spencer,  
 Bodine, Samuel Taylor,  
 Boger, Charles William,  
 Boger, Edwin Lucien,  
 Boger, John Albert, M.D.,  
 Boggs, David Chambers,  
 Bonnaffon, Sylvester, 3d, Lt.  
 U. S. A.,  
 Bonsall, William Martin,  
 Booth, Henry Driver,  
 Borie, Beauveau,  
 Borie, Charles Louis, Jr.,  
 Bosbyshell, Charles Albert,  
 Bosbyshell, Col. Oliver Christian,  
 Bournonville, Antoine,  
 Bowman, Robert Severs,  
 Boyd, David Knickerbacker,  
 Boyd, Lawrence Visscher,  
 Boyd, Rowland Carlisle,  
 Boyd, Willet Livingston,  
 Boyer, Charles Henry, D.D.S.,  
 Boyer, Rev. Francis Buckner,  
 Boyer, Herbert Morton,  
 Bradford, Thomas Hewson,  
 M.D.,  
 Brady, Captain Jasper Ewing,  
 Brenner, Henry White,  
 Brenner, John Christopher,  
 Brice, Charles Frederick,  
 Brice, Philip Howard,  
 Bringham, Robert Ralston,  
 Brinley, Charles A.,  
 Brinton, Howard Futley,  
 Brock, Horace,  
 Brock, John William,  
 Brodhead, Albert,  
 Brodhead, Robert Packer,  
 Brooke, Benjamin Hayes, Asst.  
 Paymaster U. S. N.,  
 Brooke, George,  
 Brooke, George, Jr.,  
 Brooke, Hunter,  
 Brooke, John Rutter (Maj. Gen.  
 U. S. A., retired),  
 Brooke, Mark, Captain U. S. A.,  
 Brotherlin, Eric Gregg,  
 Brown, Andrew Vinton,  
 Brown, Charles Thomas,



Brown, Frank Wigton,  
 Brown, George Herbert,  
 Brown, John Douglass,  
 Brundage, Asa Randolph,  
 Bruner, Abraham,  
 Buckenham, John Edgar Bur-  
 nett, M.D. (L),  
 Buckman, John Wilson,  
 Buehler, William George (Rear  
 Admiral U. S. N., retired),  
 Bullock, Horace,  
 Bunting, Douglas,  
 Burgin, George Horace, M.D.,  
 Burroughs, Joseph Howell,  
 Burton, George,  
 Busch, Henry Paul,  
 Busch, Miers,  
 Bush, George Tome. (L),  
 Butler, Charles Stroud,  
 Butler, George Hollenback,  
 Butler, Henry Colt,  
 Byers, Alfred Weitzel,  
 Cabeen, Francis von Albadé,  
 Cabeen, Francis von Albadé, Jr.,  
 Cadwalader, John,  
 Cadwalader, Lambert,  
 Cadwalader, Richard McCall,  
 Cadwalader, Thomas,  
 Cameron, Brewster, Jr. (L),  
 Campbell, Alexander Hamilton,  
 Campbell, Malcolm Graeme,  
 Carpenter, Edmund Nelson,  
 Carpenter, Edward, Captain U.  
 S. A.,  
 Carpenter, Frank,  
 Carpenter, Louis Henry (Briga-  
 dier General U. S. A., re-  
 tired),  
 Carson, Hon. Hampton Law-  
 rence, LL.D.,  
 Carstairs, Daniel Haddock,  
 Carstairs, John Haseltine,  
 Carver, Charles,  
 Cassatt, Robert Kelso,  
 Castle, William Henry,  
 Castner, Samuel, Jr. (E),  
 Cattell, Henry Sparks,  
 Chandler, George Allen,  
 Chandler, George Fritz,  
 Chandler, Theophilus Parsons,  
 Chaplin, William Craig. (L),  
 Chayne, Horace Augustine,  
 Claghorn, Clarence Raymond,  
 Claghorn, William Crumby,  
 Clapp, Benjamin Franklin. (E),  
 Clark, Charles Edwin,  
 Clarkson, Gerardus,  
 Clay, Randolph,  
 Clay, Richard Edey. (L),  
 Cleaver, Albert Newton,  
 Clement, Charles Francis. (L),  
 Clement, General Charles Max-  
 well,  
 Clement, John Browning,  
 Clement, John Kay,  
 Clement, Martin Withington,  
 Clement, Samuel Mitchell, Jr.,  
 Clendenin, Calvin,  
 Cliff, George Howard,  
 Closson, James Harwood, M.D.,  
 Clyde, Thomas Edward,  
 Coddington, Hon. James Hodge,  
 Coddington, John Wesley,  
 Colket, Charles Howard. (L),  
 Colket, George Hamilton,  
 Colket, Tristram Coffin,  
 Colladay, Frank Hicks,  
 Collum, James Walter,  
 Colton, John Milton,  
 Colton, Sabin Woolworth, Jr.,  
 Comegys, William Henry, Lt.  
 Col. U. S. A.,  
 Comstock, George Stedman,  
 Converse, Col. Charles Allen,  
 Cook, Edgar Scudder,  
 Cook, Gustavus Wynne,  
 Cooke, James Welch,  
 Cooke, John Buyer,  
 Cooke, Miller Horton,  
 Cooke, William Cary,

Cookman, James de Waele,  
 Cooper, Frank Gordon, D.D.S.,  
 Cooper, Horace,  
 Cooper, John West Rulon,  
 Coover, Frederick Welty, M.D.,  
 Corbin, Elbert Augustus, Jr.,  
 Corson, Alan,  
 Corson, Joseph, Kirby (Major  
 U. S. A., retired),  
 Cowperthwait, Charles Tyler,  
 Coxe, Herman Wells,  
 Coyle, John Aloysius,  
 Cragin, Charles Isaiah,  
 Craig, Neville B.,  
 Crane, Charles Judson, Colonel  
 U. S. A.,  
 Crane, Edward Andrew,  
 Croskey, John Welsh, M.D.,  
 Croskey, Knowles,  
 Crosman, James Heron, Jr.,  
 Crosman, Louis Hall,  
 Crothers, Stevenson,  
 Crowell, Samuel Babcock,  
 Crowther, Henry Lindley,  
 Crozer, George Knowles,  
 Crozer, George Knowles, Jr.,  
 Curtin, William Wilson,  
 Cuthbert, Allen Brooks,  
 Cutler, George Linden,  
 Cuyler, Thomas DeWitt,  
 Damon, Albert Forster,  
 Dana, Charles Edmund,  
 Darling, Thomas,  
 Darlington, Herbert Seymour,  
 Darlington, Rt. Rev. James  
 Henry, D.D., LL.D.,  
 Darnall, William Edgar, M.D.,  
 Darrach, James, M.D.,  
 Darte, George Lockhart,  
 Darte, Luther Curran,  
 Daugherty, Thomas,  
 Davis, Charles Gibbons,  
 Davis, Charles Lukens, Brig.  
 Gen. U. S. A.,  
 Davis, Isaac Roberts,  
 Davis, William Walley,  
 Davison, George Alexander,  
 Deans, John Sterling,  
 DeArmit, William Piper,  
 De Armond, James Keyser,  
 Dechert, Henry Martyn,  
 Dechert, Henry Taylor,  
 DeCoster, Henry Seymour,  
 Demming, Benjamin Whitman,  
 Demming, George,  
 Derr, Andrew Fine,  
 Dewey, Edwin John,  
 Dewhurst, Richard Miles,  
 Dickinson, Daniel Stevens,  
 Diffenderffer, Frank Ried,  
 Dilks, Walter Howard,  
 Dobbins, Murrell,  
 Dobbins, Thomas Munroe,  
 Dolson, William Strong,  
 Donaldson, Francis,  
 Donaldson, Francis Adams,  
 Donaldson, Wharton Landell,  
 Dorflinger, Dwight Christian,  
 Dorrance, Benjamin Ford,  
 Dougherty, Gen. Charles Bow-  
 man,  
 Douredoure, Ernest Voorhis  
 Bernard, Lieut. U. S. M. C.,  
 Duane, Russell,  
 DuBarry, Joseph Napoleon, Jr.  
 (L),  
 DuBois, Patterson. (L),  
 Duffield, Thomas Tillinghast,  
 Dull, Casper,  
 Dull, Daniel Matthieu,  
 Dunlap, Charles Edward,  
 Dunlap, Sallows,  
 Dunton, William Rush, M.D.,  
 Dyer, William Ashmead,  
 Earle, George Howard. (E),  
 Earp, John Kirkpatrick,  
 Eckard, Bayard Gelston,  
 Eckard, Rev. Leighton Wilson,  
 D.D.,  
 Ehrenfeld, Charles Hatch,

Ehrenfeld, Rev. Charles Lewis,  
 Ellison, Henry Howard,  
 Ellison, William Rodman,  
 Elwyn, Rev. Alfred Langdon,  
 Ely, Theodore Newell,  
 Emerson, Frederick Bradford,  
 Engart, John Simpson,  
 Ermentrout, Fitz-Daniel,  
 Este, Charles,  
 Etting, Joseph Marx,  
 Etting, Theodore Minis,  
 Evans, Charles Thomas,  
 Evans, Frank Brooke, Jr. (L),  
 Evans, Frysinger,  
 Evans, Herbert Spencer,  
 Evans, Montgomery,  
 Evans, Pennell Coombe,  
 Evans, Powell,  
 Evans, Shepley Wilson,  
 Evans, William Darlington,  
 Evans, Rev. William Wilson,  
 D.D.,  
 Evans, Wilson Lay,  
 Everett, Henry Lawrence,  
 Ewing, James Hunter,  
 Ewing, William Beer, M.D.,  
 Fackenthal, Benjamin Franklin,  
 Jr. (L),  
 Fairbanks, Ernest Hayward,  
 Farrell, Austin,  
 Fassett, Truman Milton,  
 Felton, Edgar Conway,  
 Findley, John Thomas,  
 Fisher, James Henry,  
 Fisher, William Read,  
 Fitch, Edwin Oberlin, Jr.,  
 Flagg, Stanley Griswold, Jr.,  
 Fleming, Henry Craig,  
 Forbes, William Innes,  
 Fornance, Joseph,  
 Forney, James, Brig. Gen. U. S.  
 M. C.,  
 Foster, Rufus James,  
 Fotherall, Stephen Blakeley,  
 Fox, Henry Korn,  
 Fox, William Henry,  
 Fraley, Joseph Cresson,  
 Franklin, Clarence Payne, M.D.,  
 Franklin, Clinton, D.D.S. (L),  
 Franklin, Malcolm,  
 Frazier, Reah, Pay Director U.  
 S. N.,  
 Fretz, John Edgar, M.D.,  
 Frick, William Russell,  
 Fry, Charles,  
 Fryer, George Gross,  
 Fullerton, Joseph Palmer,  
 Fulmer, Philip Fine, Jr.,  
 Furber, William Copeland,  
 Galloney, Frank Hutchinson,  
 Gelder, Charles Cyrus,  
 Gerhard, Albert Pepper,  
 Gest, Alexander Purves,  
 Gest, Hon. John Marshall,  
 Gherst, Emmett,  
 Gillespie, George Cuthbert,  
 Gillingham, Harrold Edgar,  
 Gilmer, William Wirt, Com. U.  
 S. N. (L),  
 Gilpin, Charles Monteith,  
 Gilpin, William Partridge,  
 Godfrey, Lincoln,  
 Goodrich, Captain William,  
 Gowen, Morris Wickersham.  
 (E),  
 Graff, Charles Frederic,  
 Graham, Charles Mervyn. (L),  
 Gray, Norman Darlington,  
 Grayson, Charles Prevost, M.D.,  
 Grayson, Clifford Prevost,  
 Green, Edgar Moore, M.D.,  
 Green, Frank Delaplaine,  
 Green, Robert McCay,  
 Gregg, David McMurtrie, Jr.,  
 Griffith, James Buchanan,  
 Griscom, Clement Acton, Jr.,  
 Griscom, Rodman Ellison,  
 Gross, Edward Ziegler,  
 Groves, Edward Augustine,  
 Gummey, Hon. Charles Francis,

Haldeman, Donald Cameron. (L),  
 Haldeman, Col. Horace Leander,  
 Haldeman, Richard Cameron,  
 Hale, Arthur,  
 Hale, George, M.D. (L),  
 Haley, Edwin James,  
 Hall, Harry Alvan,  
 Hall, Henry Wilson,  
 Hall, Walter Ferdinand,  
 Hall, William Maclay, Jr.,  
 Hamersly, Edmund Graff,  
 Hamill, Samuel McClintock,  
 M.D.,  
 Hamilton, David Kurtz,  
 Hammond, William Buehler,  
 Hand, Henry Jessop,  
 Handy, Charles,  
 Hanna, John Lowrie,  
 Hanna, Meredith,  
 Hansell, William Henry,  
 Harper, Henry Van Fossen  
 Harrington, Walter Eugene,  
 Harris, Wharton E.  
 Harrison, Charles Custis,  
 Harrison, William Henry,  
 Hart, Gustavus Noel,  
 Hart, Reginald Lawrence, Jr.,  
 Hartranft, Samuel Sebring,  
 Harvey, Richard Wistar. (L),  
 Haverstick, George Henry,  
 Hay, Hon. Henry Gurley,  
 Hayden, Rev. Horace Edwin,  
 Hayes, Robert Goodloe Harper,  
 M.D.,  
 Hazlehurst, Edward,  
 Heaton, Robert Douglas,  
 Heberton, George Van Gelder,  
 Heberton, Robert,  
 Heckman, John Claude,  
 Heitshu, Samuel Parke,  
 Heitshu, William Augustus,  
 Helick, Chauncey G.,  
 Heller, Henry Detwiller, M.D.,  
 Heller, Jacob Butz, M.D.,  
 Helme, William Edward. (L),  
 Hemphill, Robert Coleman,  
 Hendry, Paul Augustine,  
 Henry, Davis,  
 Henwood, Walter Lincoln,  
 Herman, John Armstrong,  
 Hess, Abram,  
 Hewson, Addinell, M.D.,  
 Heyl, Charles Heath, Colonel U.  
 S. A.,  
 Heyl, George Anthony,  
 Heyl, Jacob Esher,  
 Heyl, William Esher,  
 Hibshman, John Harry,  
 Hiester, Isaac,  
 Hill, Albert,  
 Hill, Walter Liddell,  
 Hillard, Lord Butler,  
 Hills, Rev. John Dows, D.D.,  
 Hodge, Charles,  
 Hodge, Rev. George Woolsey,  
 M.A.,  
 Hodge, Hugh Bayard,  
 Hoffer, Allen David,  
 Hoffman, Benjamin Rose. (L),  
 Hoffman, John Rittenhouse,  
 Hohmann, Christian Henry,  
 Hohmann, Samuel Brown,  
 Holland, James William, M.D.,  
 Holland, Rupert Sargent,  
 Hollar, William Henry, Jr.,  
 Holmes, Robert John,  
 Hood, Jennings,  
 Hoopes, Bernard,  
 Hooton, Mott (Brig. Gen. U. S.  
 A., retired),  
 Hopkinson, Oliver, Jr., M.D.,  
 Hopper, Harry Samuel,  
 Hopper, William George,  
 Horn, Charles Robert,  
 Horn, Rev. Edward Traill, D.D.,  
 Horn, Frank Melchior,  
 Hornor, William Macpherson,  
 Horstmann, Walter,  
 Hough, Oliver,

Houston, Hugh Boyle,  
 Houston, Joseph Frederic,  
 Houston, Samuel Frederic,  
 Houston, William Churchill, Jr.,  
 Howard-Smith, Logan,  
 Howe, Alfred Leighton,  
 Howe, Frank Perley,  
 Howe, Herbert Marshall, M.D.,  
 Howell, Benjamin Paschall,  
 Howes, Edward Everett,  
 Hewlett, Charles Edwin,  
 Hubbard, William Henry,  
 Hubbell, Frederick Brooks. (L),  
 Hudson, Clarence Walter,  
 Hughes, Henry Douglas,  
 Hughes, John Harry,  
 Huidekoper, Thomas Wallis,  
 Hulburd, David Wendell,  
 Hulick, Charles Edwin,  
 Hulick, William Henry,  
 Hulme, George Meyrick,  
 Hunt, Charles Parrish,  
 Huston, E. Rankin,  
 Hutchinson, Francis Martin,  
 Hutchinson, George Cass,  
 Hutchinson, Sydney Emlen,  
 Hutchinson, Sydney Pemberton,  
 Illig, Edward Smith,  
 Imbrie, Addison Murray. (L),  
 Irwin, Hugh McNeil,  
 Irwin, John Holmes. (L),  
 Israel, Rt. Rev. Rogers, D.D.,  
 Jackson, Stuart Wells. (L),  
 James, William Alden,  
 James, William Baldy,  
 Janeway, Price Wetherill,  
 Janney, Joseph Allison,  
 Jeffries, William Keigley,  
 Jessup, John Samuel, Jr.,  
 Jessup, Joseph,  
 Johnson, Alba Boardman, LL.D.,  
 Johnson, Edward Hine,  
 Johnson, Frederick Charles,  
 M.D.,  
 Johnson, James Curtis,  
 Jones, Charles Henry,  
 Jones, Edward Russell,  
 Jones, Rev. Henry Lawrence,  
 S.T.D.,  
 Jones, Richmond Legh,  
 Jones, Stockton White,  
 Jones, William Foster,  
 Jones, Rev. William Northey,  
 Jordan, Ewing, M.D.,  
 Jordan, John Woolf, LL.D. (L),  
 Jordan, Rev. Walter,  
 Jordan, Wilfred,  
 Judson, Oliver Boyce,  
 Junkin, Joseph de Forest,  
 Keasbey, Henry Griffith,  
 Keator, William Chauncey,  
 Keay, Nathaniel Seaver,  
 Keeler, Walter Bradley,  
 Keen, Gregory Bernard, LL.D.,  
 Keen, Harold Perot,  
 Keim, George De Benneville,  
 Kell, James Alexander,  
 Kelly, Henry Kuhl,  
 Kelsey, Albert,  
 Kelsey, Albert Warren. (L),  
 Kemmerer, Albert Howard,  
 Kendrick, George Washington,  
 Jr.,  
 Kennard, Joseph Spencer, Jr.,  
 LL.D., D.C.L., LITT.D. (E),  
 Kennedy, William Dewitt,  
 Kent, Henry Thomas,  
 Kent, Samuel Leonard,  
 Kessler, John Millard,  
 Keyser, Andrew Davis,  
 Kinney, Charles Clinton,  
 Kirk, William Thompson, Jr.,  
 Kirkpatrick, Hon. William Sebring, LL.D.,  
 Klock, George Ferdinand,  
 Kneass, Carl Magee,  
 Kneass, Strickland Landis,  
 Knight, Bernardo Hoff,  
 Knight, Frederick Henry,  
 Knight, Harry Schoch,

Knox, Arthur Wallace,  
 Koons, Samuel Bispham,  
 Kramer, Albert Ludlow,  
 Kuhns, Levi Oscar, L.H.D.,  
 Kulp, Harry Eugene. (L),  
 Kulp, John Stewart, M.D., Major U. S. A. (L),  
 Kuser, Winfield Scott Merkel,  
 Laird, Herbert Russell,  
 La Lanne, Frank Dale,  
 Lamberton, James McCormick,  
 Lammot, Daniel, Jr.,  
 Landell, Edwin Augustus, Jr. (L),  
 Landis, John Fulton Reynolds, Major U. S. A.,  
 Landreth, Burnet, Jr.,  
 Landreth, Lucius Scott,  
 Landreth, Symington Phillips,  
 Landreth, William Linton,  
 Lane, Alexander Henry,  
 Lane, Thomas Wakeman,  
 Laning, John, Jr. (L),  
 Laning, Robert Hodgkinson,  
 Lansdale, William Moylan,  
 Lansing, James Albert,  
 Lardner, James Lawrence,  
 Latta, James,  
 Latta, John Sanderson,  
 Latta, Samuel Whitehill,  
 Latta, Thomas Love,  
 Latta, William James,  
 Latta, William James, Jr.,  
 Law, Ernest,  
 Leach, Frank Willing,  
 Leach, Col. Josiah Granville,  
 Leach, Josiah Granville, Jr.,  
 Leach, Meredith Biddle,  
 Leach, Wilmon Whilldin, M.D.,  
 Leaming, Thomas,  
 Lee, Benjamin, M.D., Ph.D.,  
 Lee, Edmund Jennings, M.D.,  
 Lee, Horace Hoffman,  
 Lect, William Charles,  
 Leidy, Joseph, Jr., M.D.,  
 Leisenring, Frank Sheppard,  
 Lennig, George Grossmann,  
 Lessig, Othniel Blein,  
 Leverett, William,  
 Levis, Samuel White,  
 Lewars, George Henry,  
 Lewis, Albert Nelson. (L),  
 Lewis, Alfred Eli,  
 Lewis, Clifford, Jr.,  
 Lewis, David,  
 Lewis, Ellis Smyser,  
 Lewis, George Harrison,  
 Liggett, Dudley Stevenson,  
 Liggett, Sidney Byron,  
 Liggett, Sidney Sharp,  
 Lilly, John,  
 Lindemuth, Elmer Ellsworth,  
 Linderman, Garrett Brodhead,  
 Linderman, Henry Richard,  
 Lindsay, Charles Casimir,  
 Lingle, Joseph Howard,  
 Linnard, George Brown,  
 Lippincott, Jay Bucknell,  
 Lippincott, Walter,  
 Little, William Agnew,  
 Littlefield, Henry Warren,  
 Littlefield, Paul Goddard,  
 Livingston, John Henry,  
 Lloyd, John Eshleman,  
 Lloyd, William McClure, Jr. (L),  
 Lloyd, William Supplee,  
 Loder, Paul,  
 Lodge, John William,  
 Longcope, Thomas Moore,  
 Longshore, William Righter, M.D.,  
 Longwell, William Howard,  
 Loxley, Benjamin Ogden,  
 Lutz, Rev. William Filler,  
 Lyte, Eliphalet Oram, Ph.D.,  
 Macfarlane, James,  
 Mackay-Smith, Rt. Rev. Alexander, D.D.,  
 Maddock, Thomas Edgar,

Madeira, Henry,  
 Madeira, Louis Childs,  
 Madeira, Percy Childs,  
 Magee, Horace,  
 Magee, James Francis, Jr.,  
 Mann, Charles Naylor,  
 Mapes, George Egbert,  
 Marble, John Miner Carey,  
 Marcy, Alexander, Jr., M.D.,  
 Marsh, John Creth,  
 Marshall, Charles,  
 Marshall, Charles, Jr.,  
 Marshall, Samuel. (L)  
 Marston, John,  
 Marston, John, 3d, Lt. U. S.  
   M. C.  
 Martin, Edward, M.D.,  
 Martin, George Castor,  
 Martin, James,  
 Martin, Hon. Jonathan Willis  
 Matthes, Andrew Evans,  
 Matthews, Walter Littell,  
 Maxwell, Henry **Dusenbery**,  
 Mechling, Benjamin Schreiber,  
 Megear, William Bell,  
 Meigs, Arthur Vincent, M.D.,  
 Meigs, Captain Samuel Emlen,  
 Meigs William Montgomery,  
   M.D. (L),  
 Mengel, Levi Walter,  
 Mercur, Edward Geurnsey,  
 Mercur, James Watts,  
 Mercur, John Davis, M.D.,  
 Mercur, Rodney Augustus,  
 Mercur, Ulysses,  
 Merrill, Charles Warren,  
 Mifflin, George Brown,  
 Miles, George Keiter,  
 Miiller, Elmer Clarence,  
 Miller, Elihu Spencer,  
 Milliken, John Foster,  
 Milne, Caleb Jones. (L),  
 Milne, Caleb Jones, Jr.,  
 Milne Caleb Jones, 3d. (L),  
 Milne, David. (L),  
 Miner, Asher,  
 Miner, Sidney Roby,  
 Minnich, Rev. Michael Reed,  
 Mitchell, Hon. James Tyndale,  
   LL.D.,  
 Mitchell, Robert,  
 Moffly, Robert,  
 Molten, Robert Potter,  
 Monroe, Josiah,  
 Montgomery, Archibald Roger,  
 Montgomery, Joseph Lingle,  
 Moody, Carlton Montague,  
 Morgan, Charles Eldridge,  
 Morgan, Fisher Corlies,  
 Morgan, John Buck,  
 Morgan, Marshall Shapleigh,  
 Morgan, Randall,  
 Morrell, Hon. Edward de Veaux,  
 Morris, Effingham Buckley. (L),  
 Morris, Frederick Wistar,  
 Morris, Frederick Wistar, Jr.,  
 Morris, Henry, M.D.,  
 Morris, Jacob Giles,  
 Morrison, John Leland,  
 Mossman, Beriah Edwin, M.D.,  
 Muhlenberg, Frank Peter,  
 Muhlenberg, Frederic Hunter,  
 Muhlenberg, William Frederick,  
   M.D.,  
 Mulford, Spencer Kennard,  
 Mumford, Joseph Pratt,  
 Mustin, Henry Croskey, Lt. U.  
   S. N.,  
 Mustin, John Burton,  
 Myers, David Jay, Jr.,  
 Myers, Joseph Milton,  
 Myers, William Chauncey,  
 Myers, William Heywood,  
 McClary, William Jones. (L),  
 McClintock, Andrew Hamilton,  
 McCloud, Charles Malcolm,  
 McCord, John Davidson, Jr.,  
 McCormick, Seth Thomas,  
 McCoy, Frank Ross, Captain  
   U. S. A.,

McCurdy, Joseph Alexander,  
 McElroy, Clayton,  
 McIlvain, Edward Morton,  
 McIlvain, William,  
 McIlvaine, Frank,  
 McIlvaine, Herbert Robinson,  
 McIlvaine, John Gilbert,  
 McKean, Henry Pratt,  
 McKean, Thomas,  
 McKee, Thomas McKee,  
 McKibbin, Chambers,  
 McKnight, John Wm. Richards,  
 McPherson, Hon. John Bayard,  
 LL.D.,  
 Nassau, Charles Francis, M.D.,  
 Nassau, Rev. Robert Hamill,  
 D.D., S.T.D.,  
 Nassau, William Latta,  
 Nead, Benjamin Matthias,  
 Nead, Daniel Wunderlich, M.D.,  
 Neff, Jonathan Cilly,  
 Neff, Joseph Seal, M.D.,  
 Neill, Richard Renshaw,  
 Neilson, Lewis,  
 Neilson, William Delaware,  
 Nesbit, Edwin Lightner, M.D.,  
 Newell, Edward Harvey,  
 Newell, William Clayton,  
 Newhall, Daniel Smith,  
 Nichols, Carroll Brewster,  
 Nichols, Henry Sargent Prentiss,  
 Nicholls, Joseph Klapp,  
 Norris, Chas. Cotesworth Pinck-  
 ney,  
 North, George Belford,  
 North, Col. George Humphries,  
 (L),  
 North, Herbert Allibone,  
 Oberteuffer, Herman Freytag,  
 O'Connor, Jacob Miller Halde-  
 man,  
 Ogelsby, William Porter,  
 O'Neill, James Wilks, M.D.,  
 Osborn, John Annin,  
 Osbourn, Thomas Rehrer. (L),  
 Owens, James Bowie,  
 Packard, Charles Stuart Wood,  
 Packard, Francis Randolph,  
 M.D.,  
 Packard, John Hooker, 3d,  
 Page, Louis Rodman,  
 Page, Samuel Davis,  
 Paine, Hendrick Elsworth,  
 Painter, Park. (L),  
 Pancoast, Warren Lincoln,  
 Parry, Oliver Randolph,  
 Parry, Richard Randolph. (E),  
 Parsons, John Fribley,  
 Patterson, Christopher Stuart,  
 Patterson, Joseph Emmett. (L),  
 Patton, John Howard,  
 Patton, James Lee,  
 Patton, William Augustus,  
 Paul, Lawrence Taylor,  
 Paxton, Rev. John R., D.D.,  
 Peale, Joseph Megary,  
 Pearson, Davis,  
 Pearson, Frank,  
 Pearson, George,  
 Peck, George Luther,  
 Peet, Edward Butler,  
 Peet, Walter Field,  
 Peirce, Caleb Clarence,  
 Pennypacker, James Lane,  
 Pennypacker, Hon. Samuel  
 Whitaker, LL.D.,  
 Pepper, Edward, M.D. (L),  
 Pepper, George Wharton, LL.D.,  
 Pepper, William, M.D.,  
 Pequignot, James Leddy,  
 Perot, Effingham,  
 Perot, Elliston,  
 Perot, Rev. Elliston Joseph,  
 Perot, Robeson Lea,  
 Perot, Thomas Morris, Jr.,  
 Perrin, Howard Winters,  
 Pershing, Theodore,  
 Peters, Richard,  
 Peters, Richard, Jr.,  
 Phelps, Francis Alexander,



Phelps, William George,  
 Phelps, Ziba Bennett,  
 Philips, George Morris, Ph.D.,  
 Pile, Rufus Moody,  
 Pinkerton, William Woods,  
 Platt, Isaac Hull, M.D.,  
 Porcher, Samuel,  
 Porter, George De Lhorbe,  
 Porter, Isaac, Jr.,  
 Porter, Hon. William Wagener,  
 Posey, Louis Plumer, M.D.,  
 Posey, William Campbell, M.D.,  
 Potter, Ernest Felix,  
 Potter, Hon. William,  
 Potter, William Franklin,  
 Potts, Horace Miles,  
 Potts, Horace Turley,  
 Powers, Thomas Harris,  
 Price, Eli Kirk,  
 Price, Howard Campbell, Cap-  
 tain U. S. A.,  
 Price, Samuel Aldrich, Lt. U. S.  
 A.,  
 Price, William Gray, Jr.,  
 Prichett, Frederic Wilson,  
 Pugh, Achilles Henry,  
 Purves, Guillermo Colesberry,  
 Purviance, Samuel Anderson,  
 Captain U. S. A.,  
 Putnam, Earl Bill,  
 Putnam, Ralph Currier,  
 Pyle, Walter Lytle, M.D.,  
 Quay, Major Andrew Gregg  
 Curtin,  
 Ramsdell, James Gardner,  
 Rankin, John Hall,  
 Rawle, Francis,  
 Rawle, Colonel William Brooke,  
 Raymond, Henry Warren,  
 Rea, Charles,  
 Rea, Samuel, D.Sc.,  
 Read, John Rue,  
 Read, Washington Dunlap,  
 Read, William Bond, Jr.,  
 Reath, Thomas,  
 Reed, Joseph Abram,  
 Reed, Willoughby Henry, M.D.,  
 Reets, Edgar Randolph,  
 Reifsnnyder, Howard,  
 Reily, George Wolf. (L),  
 Reynolds, Wilbur Fay,  
 Reynolds, William Frederick,  
 Rhodes, James Mauran,  
 Richards, Henry Melchior Muh-  
 lenberg,  
 Richards, Joseph Ernest,  
 Richards, Joseph Thomas,  
 Richardson, Hon. Harry Alden  
 Ricketts, William Reynolds,  
 Riera, John Hartman, M.D.,  
 Riter, Charles Jones,  
 Riter, Hon. Frank Miller,  
 Robb, Thomas, Jr.,  
 Roberts, Charles Rhoads,  
 Roberts, Elihu Read,  
 Roberts, George Theodore,  
 Roberts, Sidney Lewis,  
 Roberts, Thomas,  
 Roberts, Thomas Williams,  
 Roberts, Victor Jamison,  
 Roberts, Willis Read,  
 Roberston, Bryan,  
 Robeson, Jacob Shotwell,  
 Robinson, Anthony Wayne. (L),  
 Robinson, Charles Norris,  
 Robinson, Edwin Taylor, M.D.,  
 Robinson, Rev. Lucien Moore,  
 D.D.,  
 Robinson, William Thomas,  
 Rockwell, Charles Fox,  
 Rodgers, John Gilmour,  
 Rogers, Henry Darwin,  
 Ross, Dr. George Gorgas,  
 Rouse, Francis Willis,  
 Rowen, John H., Lieut. Com-  
 mander U. S. N.,  
 Rowen, William Smith,  
 Rowland, Benjamin,  
 Rowland, Edward Koons,  
 Rudd, Alexander Holley,

Rue, Levi Lingo,  
 Runk, Louis Bancroft,  
 Rupp, Henry Wilson,  
 Rupp, Michael Riter,  
 Rush, Benjamin,  
 Russell, Alexander Wilson, Jr.,  
 Russell, Hubert Hughes,  
 Russell, Slater Brown,  
 Russell, Hon. William Worth-  
 ington,  
 Sadtler, Samuel Philip, Ph.D.,  
 Sahn, William Kopp Tritle,  
 M.D.,  
 Sanderson, Charles Dudley,  
 Sanderson, Charles Dudley, Jr.,  
 Sanderson, George,  
 Sanderson, James Gardner,  
 Sawtelle, Edmund Munroe,  
 Sayres, Edward Stalker,  
 Sayres, Harry,  
 Scaife, Oliver Perry, Jr.,  
 Scaife, Walter Bell,  
 Schermerhorn, Clarence Eaton,  
 Schermerhorn, Frank Earle,  
 Schnure, Howard Davis,  
 Schnure, William Marion,  
 Schoch, Amon Zeller,  
 Schoch, Ira Christian,  
 Schoff, Frederic. (L),  
 Schooley, Harry Barnum,  
 Schwartz, John Loeser,  
 Scott, Alexander Harvey. (L),  
 Scott, Charles Henry,  
 Scott, Henri Guest Thomas,  
 Scott, John Caile,  
 Scott, Hon. John Morin. (L),  
 Scott, Lewis Allaire, Jr. (L),  
 Scott, Louis Slesman,  
 Scott, Rev. William Reese, Chap-  
 lain,  
 Scully, Charles Alison,  
 Searle, Hon. Alonzo Thurston,  
 Sears, Walter Jesse, Com. U. S.  
 N.,  
 Seiss, Covington Few,  
 Selden, Edwin Van Deusen,  
 Sellers, Coleman, Jr.,  
 Sellers, Edwin Foote,  
 Sellers, Edwin Jaquette,  
 Sellers, Horace Wells,  
 Sells, John Davis,  
 Semple, Edward Clarke,  
 Sener, Samuel Miller,  
 Shannon, Charles Emery Gould,  
 M.D.,  
 Sharpe, Richard, Jr.,  
 Sharpless, George Reifsnnyder,  
 Sharpless, John Robins,  
 Sharpless, William Price,  
 Shattuck, Frank Rodman,  
 Shattuck, George,  
 Sheahan, William Henry,  
 Shepherd, George Elwood,  
 Shepherd, Harry Clayton,  
 Shepherd, William Carver,  
 Sheppard, Frank Little,  
 Sheppard, Franklin Lawrence,  
 Sheppard, Howard Reynolds,  
 Sherman, Charles Pomeroy,  
 Shewell, George Dunbar,  
 Shick, Robert Porter. (L),  
 Shimer, Porter William, Ph.D.,  
 Shindel, Will Lincoln, M.D.,  
 Shoemaker, Archie Carver,  
 D.D.S.,  
 Shoemaker, Charles Jones,  
 Shriver, Frank William,  
 Shriver, George Howard,  
 Shull, David Franklin,  
 Shute, Henry Damon,  
 Siegrist, Henry Warren,  
 Sill, Harold Montgomery,  
 Silvester, Rev. Clarence Clark,  
 Silvester, Learoyd,  
 Simons, George Stuart,  
 Sims, Charles Abercrombie,  
 Sinex, John Henry. (L),  
 Sinnickson, Charles Perry,  
 Siter, Elijah Hollingsworth,  
 M.D.,

Skilton, Rev. John Davis,  
 Slifer, Paul Bringham, Jr.,  
 Sloan, John Hope,  
 Small, Philip Albright. (L),  
 Small, Samuel. (L),  
 Small, Samuel, Jr. (L),  
 Smiley, Samuel Ewing, Major  
 U. S. A.,  
 Smith, Abraham Lewis,  
 Smith, Alexis Dupont, M.D.,  
 Smith, Archie DeWitt,  
 Smith, Benjamin Hayes,  
 Smith, Charles William,  
 Smith, James Somers, Jr.,  
 Smith, Persifor Frazer,  
 Smith, Philip Henry Waddell,  
 Smith, Thomas Kilby,  
 Smith, Walter George,  
 Smith, William Butler Duncan,  
 Smith, William Rudolph,  
 Smith, Winthrop,  
 Smyth, Calvin Mason,  
 Smyth, Isaac Scott, Jr.,  
 Snively, Rev. Summerfield Em-  
 ory, M.D.,  
 Snodgrass, Frank Peale,  
 Snowden, Hon. Archibald Lou-  
 don, LL.D.,  
 Snowden, Charles Randolph,  
 Snowden, General George Ran-  
 dolph,  
 Snowden, Robert Patterson,  
 Snyder, Frederic Antes,  
 Snyder, George Duncan,  
 Snyder John Andrew,  
 Snyder, John Milton,  
 Solis-Cohen, David Hays,  
 Souder, Edmund Alphonso,  
 Sparkhawk, Richard Dale,  
 Sperry, Henry Muhlenberg,  
 Sproat, Harris Elric,  
 Stager, Oscar W.,  
 Stalford, Martin Reginald,  
 Staples, Hon. Charles Boone,  
 Stark, David Scott,  
 Stark, Samuel Judson,  
 Starr, Isaac, Jr.,  
 Stavers, William Appleton,  
 Stearns, Irving Ariel,  
 Steel, Hon. John Byers,  
 Steinman, George,  
 Steinmetz, Charles Mays,  
 Steinmetz, Joseph Allison,  
 Stenger, Hon. William Shearer,  
 Sterling, Addison Alexander,  
 Stevens, John Bergen,  
 Stevens, William Chase,  
 Stine, Henry Moore, M.D.,  
 Stockett, Rev. Norman,  
 Stockham, Edward Villeroy,  
 von Stockhausen, Thomas  
 George,  
 Stockton, Edward Alexander,  
 Stoddart, Curwen,  
 Stoeber, William Casper,  
 Stone, Hon. Charles Warren,  
 Stone, Frank Sturdevant,  
 Story, Frederick Grosvenor,  
 Stotesbury, Edward Townsend,  
 Stout, Abel Lukens,  
 Stovell, Charles Lewis,  
 Stovell, Frederick Davant,  
 Stovell, Morris Lewis,  
 Stubbs, Theodore Kirk,  
 Stull, Adam Arbuckle,  
 Sturdevant, William Henry,  
 Sutherland, Walter Coray,  
 Sutter, William Henry,  
 Taylor, John Madison, M.D.,  
 Tevis, Joshua,  
 Thomas, James Frederick,  
 Thomas, Joseph Baylis,  
 Thomas, Rt. Rev. Nathaniel Sey-  
 mour,  
 Thomas, Robert Carr. (L),  
 Thomas, Walter Cuthbert,  
 Thompson, Paul,  
 Thorington, James, M.D. (L),  
 Tingley, Charles Love Scott,

Tower, Hon. Charlemagne, LL.D.,  
 Townsend, Frank Evans,  
 Tryon, Charles Zimmerling,  
 Tubbs, Benjamin Reynolds,  
 Tubbs, Charles,  
 Tubbs, Warren. (L),  
 Turnbull, Charles Smith, M.D.,  
 Tustin, Hon. Ernest Leigh,  
 Twitchell, Arthur Clements,  
 Tyler, Sidney Frederick,  
 Van Baum, Willam Weed, M.D.,  
 Van Dyke, Theodore Anthony, Jr.,  
 Van Leer, William Mintzer,  
 Vansant, Eugene Larue, M.D.,  
 Vedder, Edward Bright, Captain U. S. A.,  
 Vinton, Charles Harrod, M.D. (L),  
 Vogels, Edward Page,  
 Wadsworth, Rev. Charles, Jr., D.D.,  
 Wagner, George Mechlin,  
 Walbridge, Thomas Chester,  
 Wallace, William Stewart,  
 Waller, Rev. David Jewett, Ph.D., D.D.,  
 Waller, Levi Ellmaker,  
 Walls, William Cameron,  
 Walsh, Stevenson Hockley,  
 Ward, Joseph Ripley Chandler, D.D.S.,  
 Warfield, Rev. Ethelbert Dudley, LL.D.,  
 Warne, William Budd, Jr. (L),  
 Warner, John McMurdie. (E),  
 Warren, Ebenezer Burgess,  
 Warren, Henry Mather,  
 Warren, General Lucius Henry,  
 Washburn, Rev. Louis Cope, S.T.D.,  
 Washington, George Steptoe,  
 Watson, James Cummin,  
 Watts, Hon. Ethelbert,  
 Wayne, William, Jr.,  
 Weaver, Charles Henry,  
 Weaver, Clement,  
 Weaver, Ethan Allen,  
 Weaver, Joseph Briggs,  
 Weisel, Elmer Preston,  
 Weisel, Oscar Williams,  
 Weitzel, Eben Boyd,  
 Weitzel, Paul Elmer,  
 Weitzel, Paul Ross,  
 Welch, Ashbel,  
 Welles, Albert Hunt,  
 Welles, Henry Hunter, Jr.,  
 West, Captain Horace Brene-  
 man,  
 West, James,  
 Wetherill, Francis Macomb. (L),  
 Wharton, Henry Redwood, M.D.,  
 Wheeler, Homer Webster, Ma-  
 jor U. S. A.,  
 Whelen, Thomas Duncan,  
 Whelen, William Baker,  
 Whitmer, Robert Foster,  
 Whitney, Andrew Jackson, Jr.,  
 Whitney, Francis Nichols,  
 Wignall, Charles Francis,  
 Wilbur, Rollin Henry,  
 Wilbur, Warren Abbott,  
 Wilcox, John Andrew (Colonel U. S. A., retired),  
 Wilcox, John Fleming,  
 Wilhelm, Calvin Weaver,  
 Wilkinson Ogden Dungan,  
 Williams, Francis Churchill,  
 Williams, John,  
 Williams, Richard Norris,  
 Williamson, Walter Dickson,  
 Williamson, William Finley,  
 Wilson, Alan Dickson,  
 Wilson, James Dale,  
 Wilson, Thomas Wallace,  
 Wilson, William Currie,  
 Wiltbank, Samuel Paynter,

Wister, Alexander Wilson,  
Wister, Lewis Wynne,  
Wolverton, Simon P., Jr.,  
Wood, Alan, 3d,  
Wood, Clement Biddle,  
Wood, Frederick,  
Wood, Howard,  
Wood, Howard, Jr.,  
Wood, Richard Francis,  
Wood, Richard Gilpin. (L),  
Wood, Thomas Dewees,  
Woods, Edward Augustus,  
Woodward, George Stanley,  
M.D.,

Woolston, Joseph Longstreth,  
Worrell, Thomas Worcester,  
Worth, Mason Galloway,  
Wright, Anson Burlingame,  
Wright, George Riddle,  
Wurts, John Sparkhawk,  
Yeaton, William Newell,  
Yerkes, Hon. Harman,  
Zell, Thomas Burd,  
Ziegler, Harry Smith,  
Ziegler, James Patterson, M.D.,  
Ziegler, Walter Macon Lowrie,  
M.D.

NOTE.—(E)—Perpetual or Endowed Membership. (L)—Life Member.

## Life Members

---

- Adams, Richard Calmet,  
Baird, Thomas Evans, Jr.,  
Baker, George Fales, M.D.,  
Balch, Edwin Swift,  
Balch, Thomas Willing,  
\*Barratt, Hon. Norris Stanley,  
LL.D.,  
Battles, Frank,  
Beale, Joseph,  
Beisel, Reuben Alvan,  
Beitler, Lewis Eugene,  
Biddle, Thomas, M.D.,  
Bishop, George Conarroe,  
Buckenharn, John Edgar Bur-  
nett, M.D.,  
Bush, George Tome,  
Cameron, Brewster, Jr.,  
\*Castner, Samuel, Jr.,  
Chaplain, William Craig,  
\*Clapp, Benjamin Franklin,  
Clay Richard Edey,  
Clement, Charles Francis,  
Colket, Charles Howard,  
DuBarry, Joseph Napoleon, Jr.,  
DuBois, Patterson,  
\*Earle, George Howard,  
Evans, Frank Brooke, Jr.,  
Fackenthal, Benjamin Franklin,  
Jr.,  
Franklin, Clinton, D.D.S.,  
Gilmer, William Wirt, Com.  
U. S. N.,  
\*Gowen, Morris Wickersham,  
Graham, Charles Mervyn,  
Haldeman, Donald Cameron,  
Hale, George, M.D.,  
Harvey, Richard Wistar,  
Helme, William Edward,  
Hoffman, Benjamin Rose,  
Hubbell, Frederick Brooks,  
Imbrie, Addison Murray,  
Irwin, John Holmes,  
Jackson, Stuart Wells,  
Jordan, John Woolf, LL.D.,  
Kelsey, Albert Warren,  
\*Kenard, Joseph Spencer, Jr.,  
Kulp, Harry Eugene,  
Kulp, John Stewart, Major U.  
S. A.,  
Landell, Edwin Augustus, Jr.,  
Laning, John, Jr.,  
Lewis, Albert Nelson,  
Lloyd, William McClure, Jr.,  
Marshall, Samuel,  
Meigs, William Montgomery,  
M.D.,  
Milne, Caleb Jones,  
Milne, Caleb Jones, 3d,  
Morris, Effingham Buckley,  
McClary, William Jones,  
North, Col. George Humphries,  
Osbourn, Thomas Rehrer,  
Painter, Park,  
\*Parry, Richard Randolph,  
Patterson, Joseph Emmett,  
Pepper, Edward, M.D.,  
Reily, George Wolf,  
Roberts, Thomas Williams,  
Robinson, Anthony Wayne,  
Schoff, Frederic,  
Scott, Alexander Harvey,  
Scott, Hon. John Morin,  
Scott, Lewis Allaire, Jr.,  
Shick, Robert Porter,  
Sinex, John Henry,  
Small, Philip Albright,  
Small, Samuel,  
Small, Samuel, Jr.,  
Thomas, Robert Carr,  
Thorington, James, M.D.,  
Tubbs, Warren,  
Vinton, Charles Harrod, M.D.,  
Warne, William Budd, Jr.,  
\*Warner, John McMurdie,  
Wetherill, Francis Macomb,  
Wood, Richard Gilpin.

## Deceased Members

---

Abbott, Harry Bartlett,  
Adams, Robert, Jr.,  
Alison, Francis John,  
Allen, Francis Olcott,  
Allison, William C.,  
Anderson, Isaac Lane,  
Anderson, Joseph Wilson,  
Armstrong, William Chamberlain,  
Arnold, Crawford,  
Ash, Henry St. Clair,  
Ash, James,  
Ash, John Morgan,  
Ashhurst, Frazer,  
Ashhurst, Richard L.,  
Ayres, William,  
Baily, Joel Jackson,  
Baird, Absalom,  
Baker, Richard Rowley,  
Baker, Robert Cornelius,  
Baker, Washington Hopkins,  
Baker, William Spohn,  
Barclay, Richard DeCharms,  
Bell, William,  
Bellas, Henry Hobart,  
Belles, Courtland Kimball,  
Benson, Edwin North,  
Bergstresser, James C.,  
Biddle, Alexander,  
Biddle, Algernon Sydney,  
Biddle, Arthur,  
Biddle, Cadwalader,  
Biddle, William Foster,  
Binder, Horace,  
Bispham, George Tucker,  
Bissell, Frederick Meade,  
Blight, Charles Penrose,  
Blight, William Sergeant,  
Bliss, John Horace,  
Boyd, Herbert Hart,  
Boyd, Peter Keller,  
Bright, George Dennis,  
Brinton, John Hill,  
Brinton, John Hill, Jr.,  
Brock, Robert Coleman Hall,  
Brodhead, Luke Wills,  
Brooke, Benjamin,  
Brooke, Benjamin,  
Brooke, Francis Mark,  
Brooke, High Jones,  
Brown, Crosby Morton,  
Brown, Henry Riehle,  
Brown, LeRoy Hyde,  
Brown, William Henry,  
Bruner, Daniel Pastorius,  
Bruner, William Weiser,  
Buehler, Henry Buehler,  
Cadwalader, Charles Evert,  
Carpenter, James Edward,  
Carpenter, Thomas Preston,  
Cassatt, Alexander Johnston,  
Cattell, William Cassady,  
Chambers, Walter Lee,  
Chaplin, John Mentour,  
Chaplin, Melchoir Beltzhoover,  
Chase, Edward Henry,  
Claghorn, James Raymond,  
Clapp, Ebenezer Herbert,  
Clarkson, Samuel,  
Clay, A. Alexander,  
Cochran, William Allison,  
Collum, Richard Strader,  
Comegys, Edward Tiffin,  
Conarro, George Mecum,  
Converse, John Heman,  
Cooper, Harry James,  
Craig, Isaac,  
Crisby, Peirce,  
Crozer, Samuel Alrich,  
Cunningham, Theodore Hill,  
Cuthbert, Mayland,  
Damon, Edwin Adams,  
Darlington, Joseph G.,  
Darrach, William Bradford,  
Darte, Alfred, Jr.,  
Davis, Edward Morris, Jr.,

Davis, William W. H.,  
 Dechert, Robert Porter,  
 DeHaven, Holstein,  
 Diehl, Edward Clarke,  
 Dillard, Henry Kuhl,  
 Dobbins, Edward Tonkin,  
 Dodson, Richard Townsend,  
 Dorr, Dalton,  
 Dorrance, Charles,  
 Dotterer, Henry Sassman,  
 Douglass, Benjamin Johnson,  
 Dubbs, Joseph Henry,  
 Egle, William Henry,  
 Elkins, William Lukens,  
 Ellison, Rodman Barker,  
 Ellison, William P.,  
 Emery, Titus Salter,  
 Etting, Edward Johnson,  
 Etting, Charles Edward,  
 Evans, Frank B.,  
 Evans, M. Dawson,  
 Evans, Samuel,  
 Eyanson, John Eddy,  
 Fagan, Maurice Edward,  
 Field, Thomas Yardley,  
 Filson, John Baily,  
 Flickwir, Joseph Williamson,  
 Fornance, James,  
 Fox, Daniel Miller,  
 Frazer, James Patriot Wilson,  
 Frazer, Persifor,  
 Gearhart, Wilson Mettler,  
 Geiger, John L.,  
 Gerhard, John Sargeant,  
 Gilbert, John Gustavus,  
 Gobin, John Peter Shindel,  
 Govett, Annesley R.,  
 Gray, Jerome Bethel,  
 Grayson, F. W., Jr.,  
 Green, James Delaplaine,  
 Green, Traill,  
 Greenough, Ebenezer William,  
 Griffing, George Hiram,  
 Griffith, Manuel E.,  
 Guillou, Victor,  
 Gumbes, Charles Wetherill,  
 Haddock, Stanley Brickett,  
 Hale, John Mills,  
 Hall, Benjamin Franklin,  
 Hall, John Hancock,  
 Hanold, Hiester Muhlenberg,  
 Hanold, Frank Wildbahn,  
 Hart, Benjamin Franklin,  
 Hart, John,  
 Hartman, John M.,  
 Hartranft, Linn,  
 Hayden, Percy Howard,  
 Hayden, William,  
 Hayes, Robert Priestley,  
 Hazlehurst, Francis,  
 Heaton, William Henry,  
 Heckman, George C.,  
 Heitshu, William Augustus,  
 Heston, Alfred Clarence,  
 Hewes, William Augustus,  
 Hill, William,  
 Hodge, Francis Blanchard,  
 Hodge, James Monroe,  
 Holliday, Robert Lowery,  
 Horstmann, Ferdinand Oden,  
 Hoskinson, Thomas Julius,  
 Houston, Henry Howard,  
 Houston, William Churchill,  
 Howard, Daniel Walde,  
 Howell, Charles Herkness,  
 Howell, Joshua Ladd,  
 Hoyt, Henry,  
 Hulick, Francis Rader,  
 Hunt, William,  
 Hutchinson, Charles Hare,  
 Hutchinson, Pemberton Sydney,  
 Ingham, William Henry,  
 Irish, Dallas Cadwalader,  
 Jackson, Lewis Bush,  
 James, Bushrod Washington,  
 James, Clarence Gray,  
 Janey, Spencer Moses,  
 Johnson, Elias Henry,  
 Jones, Charles Rodman,  
 Jones, Edwin Horn,  
 Jordan, George Frederick,  
 Judson, Oliver Albert,



Keese, Francis Suydam,  
Keim, George deBenneville,  
Keim, Henry May,  
Keller, John Peter,  
Kenney, Henry Fletcher,  
Keyser, Peter Dirck,  
Kimball, William Spooner,  
Krumbhaar, Col. Alexander,  
Lamberton, Robert Alexander,  
Lancaster, Joseph Campbell,  
Landreth, Oliver,  
Lane, Augustus H.,  
Lane, Thomas H.,  
Lawrence, Henry H.,  
Lee, William Jenks,  
Leidy, Philip,  
Leisenring, William,  
Lewis, William Burr Nash,  
Lewis, William Fisher,  
Lloyd, Howard Williams,  
Lloyd, Isaac,  
Lloyd, John,  
Linderman, Robert Packer,  
Lippincott, Craige,  
Littell, Charles Willing,  
Little, Arthur Hutchinson,  
Little, Arthur Williamson,  
Lockwood, Elon Dunbar,  
Luders, Harrison Christian,  
Lyte, Francis Asbury,  
Madeira, Louis Cephas,  
Mann, William Benson,  
Marshall, Francis Ridgway,  
Marston, John,  
Martin, John Hill,  
Martin, John Selby,  
Merrill, Lewis,  
Mervin, Walter Lee,  
Messler, Thomas Doremus,  
Messler, Remsen Varick,  
Mifflin, James,  
Miller, Hobart,  
Miner, Charles Abbott,  
Montgomery, Thomas Harrison,  
Moore, James W.,  
Morris, Israel Wistar,

Morris, Jacob Giles,  
Morris, John R.,  
Morris, T. Milnor,  
Morton, Thomas George,  
Murray, Samuel Wilson,  
McCowan, William Dana,  
McIntire, Clarence Stanley,  
McKean, Thomas,  
McNair, Thomas Speer,  
Newhall, Frederick Cushman,  
Newton, George Junkin,  
Nichols, Henry Kuhl,  
Norris, Alexander Wilson,  
Norton, Claude Richards,  
Otto, Charles Witman,  
Packard, John Hooker,  
Parrish, Charles,  
Parvin, Theophilus,  
Patterson, Robert Emmett,  
Pattison, Robert Emery,  
Paulding, Tattnell,  
Paulson, Charles Henry, Jr.,  
Peale, Washington James,  
Perkins, Edward L.,  
Perkins, Edwin Stanley,  
Perot, Elliston Luke,  
Perot, Joseph Sansom,  
Perot, Thomas Morris,  
Phelps, John Bell Tilden,  
Phelps, John Case,  
von Pilcheau, Baron George  
Charles Piler,  
Pinkerton, John J.,  
Platt, Franklin,  
Plumly, George Washington,  
Polk, Rufus King,  
Potter, John Irvin,  
Potter, Leland Barker,  
Potter, Thomas, Jr.,  
Potts, Charles William,  
Potts, William John,  
Powell, George Washington, Jr.,  
Powell, Washington Bleddyn,  
Price, Edward Augustus,  
Prevost, Sutherland Mallet,  
Purviance, John Nelson,

Quay, Matthew Stanley,  
 Rathbun, Robert Packer,  
 Read, Louis Werwag,  
 Read, John J., Rear Admiral U.  
   S. N.,  
 Reed, Henry,  
 Reeder, Wilbur Fisk,  
 Repplier, Jacob Lancaster,  
 Rice, Lewis,  
 Ritchie, Craig Dorsey,  
 Rittenhouse, Henry Norman,  
 Ritter, Joseph Maxfield,  
 Robinson, Thomas Adams,  
 Roberts, George Brooke,  
 Robertson, Norman,  
 Rockwell, Almon Ferdinand,  
 Russell, Alexander Wilson,  
 Sawtelle, Charles Greene, Jr.,  
 Schober, Frederick,  
 Schermerhorn, Louis Y.,  
 Schmucker, Francis Steenbergen,  
 Schmucker, George William,  
 Scott, Lewis Allaire,  
 Scott, Thomas Seymour,  
 Sellers, Coleman,  
 Sellers, David Wampole,  
 Sewell, Wyn Reeves,  
 Shackford, John William,  
 Shippen, Edward,  
 Shoemaker, Lazarus Ives,  
 Shoemaker, Levi Ives,  
 Shoemaker, George,  
 Silvester, William Wallace,  
 Simons, John Farr,  
 Sims, Clifford Stanley,  
 Sims, John Clark,  
 Singer, Edgar Arthur,  
 Smith, Charles Richardson,  
 Smith, Edmund,  
 Smith, Frank Percy,  
 Smith, Jesse Evans,  
 Smith, Norman Macalester,  
 Smith, Robert Hobart,  
 Smith, Robert William,  
 Smith, Winthrop Brentwood,  
 Smith, William Farrer,  
 Snowden, Llewellyn Randolph,  
 Souder, Thomas Mifflin,  
 Spangler, Edward Webster,  
 Stanhope, William Howell,  
 Stearns, Lazarus Denison,  
 Stevens, Henry Alexander,  
 Stichter, Thomas Diehl,  
 Stoddart, Gideon,  
 Sturdevant, Edward Warren,  
 Taylor, Charles Henry,  
 Terry, Willis,  
 Titman, George Willis,  
 Tobey, Arthur Weddington,  
 Tracy, Charles L.,  
 Turner, Charles Peaslee,  
 Turner, James Varnum Peter,  
 Vansant, Harry Cheston,  
 Vanuxem, Louis Clark,  
 Vaux, Jacob Waln,  
 Wagner, Charles Mechlin,  
 Wainwright, Chandler Price,  
 Waitneight, Henry Powers,  
 Walsh, George Herbert,  
 Waterhouse, Archibald Nisbett,  
 Watkins, Samuel Pete, Jr.,  
 Watts, William Meredith,  
 Wayne, William,  
 Weaver, William Gwynne,  
 Weidman, Grant,  
 Wetherill, John Price,  
 Wetherill, Albert Lawrence,  
 Wetherill, Charles Cowpland,  
 Wetherill, Samuel,  
 Weygandt, Cornelius Nolen,  
 Wheeler, John Howell,  
 Whelen, Edward Siddows,  
 Whelen, Henry,  
 Whelen, Henry, Jr.,  
 Wickersham, Robert O'Neill,  
 Wight, Andrew Revoudt,  
 Wilcox, Montgomery,  
 Wilcox, Samuel,  
 Wilhelm, William Herman,  
 Williams, Charles,  
 Wilson, Edward Howell,



PATTERSON & WHITE CO.  
PHILADELPHIA





LIBRARY OF CONGRESS



0 011 696 940 3





LIBRARY OF CONGRESS



0 011 696 940 3



Hollinger Corp.  
pH 8.5